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On October 10, 2014, Complainant BTG International Inc. ("BTG") and Respondents 

Laboratories Silanes SA de CV, Instituto Bioclon SA de CV, and Rare Disease Therapeutics, 

Inc. (collectively, "Respondents") filed a joint motion (903-046) to terminate the Investigation in 

its entirety on the basis of a settlement agreement between BTG and Respondents. ' On October 

23, 2014, the Commission Investigative Staff ("Staff) filed a response in support of the joint 

motion. 

The Commission's Rules provide that "[a]ny party may move at any time to terminate an 

investigation in whole or in part as to any or all respondents on the basis of settlement, a 

licensing or other agreement...." 19 C.F.R. § 210.21(a)(2); see also Certain Organizer Racks 

and Prods. Containing Same, Inv. No. 337-TA-466, Order No. 7 at 2 (Feb. 19, 2001). In the 

instant proceeding, the motion to terminate is based upon a settlement agreement, which appears 

In accordance with Commission Rule 210.21(b), BTG and Respondents filed a public version of the settlement 
agreement on October 10, 2014. On October 30, 2014, BTG and Respondents filed a modified public version of the 
settlement agreement, with fewer redactions. 
2 The Complaint and Notice of Investigation named The Silanes Group as a respondent. See 78 Fed. Reg. 75,372-
373 (Dec. 11,2013). The Silanes Group has consistently maintained that it is not a legal entity. The Commission 
Investigative Staff submits that because BTG filed the joint motion to terminate the Investigation in its entirety, "it is 
appropriate to terminate the Investigation as to all parties, including 'The Silanes Group,' without determining 
whether it was properly named." (Staff Resp. at 2 n.2 (emphasis added).) The undersigned agrees. 



to completely resolve the dispute between BTG and Respondents. A copy of the settlement 

agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit 1. Consistent with 19 C.F.R. § 210.21(b)(1), BTG and 

Respondents state that "[fjhere are no other agreements, written or oral, express or implied, 

between BTG and Respondents concerning the subject matter of this Investigation." (Mot. at 1; 

Mem. at 4.) 

In any initial determination terminating an investigation by settlement agreement or 

consent order, the administrative law judge is directed to consider and make appropriate findings 

regarding the effect of the proposed settlement on the public health and welfare, competitive 

conditions in the United States economy, production of like or directly competitive articles in the 

United States, and United States consumers. 19 C.F.R. § 210.50(b)(2). BTG and Respondents 

assert that "[termination of this Investigation is in the public interest and wil l not have any 

adverse effect on the public health and welfare and/or competitive conditions in the United 

States." (Mem. at 5.) Staff is likewise of the view that "based on the available information . . . 

terminating this Investigation based on the settlement agreement will not be contrary to the 

public interest."3 (Staff Resp. at 14.) The undersigned agrees that termination of this 

Investigation does not impose any undue burdens on the public health and welfare, competitive 

conditions in the United States economy, production of like or directly competitive articles in the 

United States, or United States consumers. 

Accordingly, it is the undersigned's Initial Determination that the joint motion (903-046) 

to terminate this Investigation in its entirety be granted. This Initial Determination, along with 

3 Staff notes that because, under the settlement agreement, [ 

] 
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supporting documentation, is hereby certified to the Commission. 

Pursuant to 19 C.F.R. § 210.42(h), this Initial Detennination shall become the 

determination of the Commission unless a party files a petition for review of the Initial 

Determination pursuant to 19 C.F.R. § 210.43(a), or the Commission, pursuant to 19 C.F.R. 

§ 210.44, orders, on its own motion, a review of the Initial Determination or certain issues 

herein. 

SO ORDERED. 

Chief Administrative Law Judge 
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Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release By and Between BTG International Inc. 
as a First Party, and Laboratories Silanes S.A. de C.V., Instituto Bioclon S.A. de C V . 

and Rare Disease Therapeutics, Inc., as a Second Party, Regarding Al l Disputes Related to 
U.S. International Trade Commission Investigation Number 337-TA-903 

This Settlement Agreement and Mutual Release ("Agreement") is entered into as of the 
date of last signature below (the "Effective Date"), between BTG International Inc. ("BTG"), a 
United States corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware having 
its principal place of business at Five Tower Bridge, Suite 800, 300 Barr Harbor Drive, West 
Conshohocken, Pennsylvania, 19428-2998, USA, Laboratorios Silanes, S.A. deCV. 
("Laboratories Silanes"), a Mexican corporation organized under the laws of Mexico, having its 
principal place of business at Amores 1304, Col. del. Valle, CP. 03100, Mexico D.F., Instituto 
Bioclon, S.A. de C V . ("Bioclon"), a Mexican corporation organized and existing under the laws 
of Mexico having a principal place of business at Calzada de Tlalpan No. 4687, Col. Toriello 
Guerra, CP. 14050, Mexico D.F., and Rare Disease Therapeutics, Inc. ("RDT"), a United States 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the state of Tennessee, having a principal 
place of business at 2550 Meridian Boulevard, Franklin, Tennessee 37067. Laboratorios Silanes 
and Bioclon are herein collectively referenced as the "Silanes Parties". BTG, the Silanes Parties, 
and RDT are collectively referenced herein as the "Parties" to this Agreement. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on October 30, 2013, BTG filed a complaint with the U.S. International 
Trade Commission ("Commission") under section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 
U.S.C § 1337 ("Complaint"), alleging violations of section 337 based upon, inter alia, the 
importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States 
after importation of certain antivenom compositions and products containing the same by reason 
of infringement of U.S. Patent No. 8,048,414 ("the '414 patent") by the Silanes Parties, The 
Silanes Group, RDT, Veteria Laboratories, and BioVeteria Life Sciences, LLC (collectively 
"ITC Respondents"), as well as Accredo Health Group, Inc. BTG's Complaint further alleged 
that an industry in the United States existed as required by subsection (a)(2) of section 337, 
through BTG's manufacture and sale of its own antivenom, CroFab. BTG's Complaint further 
requested remedial relief in the form of a limited exclusion and cease and desist orders; 

WHEREAS, on November 29, 2013, the Commission instituted an investigation, 
assigned Investigation Number 337-TA-903 ("Investigation") against the ITC Respondents, to 
determine whether these entities had violated section 337 through the importation, sale for 
importation, or sale after importation of certain antivenom products alleged to infringe BTG's 
'414 Patent including the Silanes Parties and RDT's accused products Anavip, Antivipmyn, and 
Antivipmyn TRI (the "Accused Products"). See 78 Fed. Reg. 75372 (Dec. 11, 2013); 

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2014, the Chief Administrative Law Judge granted a Joint 
Motion to Withdraw the Complaint and Terminate the Investigation as to Veteria Laboratories 
and BioVeteria Life Sciences, LLC and granted a Partial Stay as to these Respondents pending 
final determination on the Motion (Order No. 14); 
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WHEREAS, on April 1, 2014, the U.S. International Trade Commission fded a Notice 
Not to Review an Initial Determination Partially Terminating the Investigation based on BTG's 
withdrawal of its Complaint against Veteria Laboratories and BioVeteria Life Sciences, LLC; 

WHEREAS, though the Silanes Group is formally a named Respondent in the 
Investigation, Laboratorios Silanes and Instituto Bioclon have represented throughout the 
Investigation and do now represent under this Agreement that The Silanes Group is not a legal 
entity. To the extent that the Silanes Group (or, "Grupo Silanes") is a legal entity, this 
Agreement shall be read to bind that entity as well; 

WHEREAS the Silanes Parties and RDT raised affirmative defenses in the Investigation, 
asserting in part that the '414 patent was invalid and not infringed by their Accused Products; 
that the '414 patent was unenforceable; that no importation of certain Accused Products had yet 
occurred; that BTG had not established a domestic industry; and that the public interest 
precluded the entry of any remedial order; 

WHEREAS on August 14, 2014, the Commission Investigative Staff ("Staff') filed a 
Prehearing Brief indicating the Staffs belief that, inter alia, certain asserted claims of the '414 
patent would be infringed, that other asserted claims would not, that the asserted claims of the 
'414 patent were not invalid or unenforceable, that a violation of Section 337 had not been 
established for Anavip, as it has not been imported into the United States, and that a violation of 
Section 337 has been established by the importation of Antivipmyn and Antivipmyn TRI into the 
United States, but that the public interest weighed against imposing a limited exclusion order 
against Antivipmyn TRI; 

WHEREAS on August 11, 2014, the Silanes Parties and RDT fded a Petition for Inter 
Partes Review of U.S. Patent No. 8,048,414 under 35 U.S.C. §§ 311-319 and 37 C.F.R. §§ 42.1-
.80, 42.100-.123 with the Patent Trial and Appeal Board alleging invalidity of the '414 patent 
under 35 U.S.C. §§ 102, 103 and lack of benefit of priority under §112 (Case IPR2014-01269) 
("IPR"); and 

WHEREAS, BTG, the Silanes Parties, and RDT deem it to be in their best interests, and 
to their mutual advantage, to compromise, release and fully and finally resolve the claims raised 
in the Investigation on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, without admitting 
liability, failure to make their case, or invalidity of the '414 patent, in order to achieve certainty 
in their business dealings and avoid the expense and uncertainty of further litigation. 

DEFINITIONS 

The following terms when used herein with initial capital letters shall have the meanings 
set forth below: 

"Affiliate" means, in relation to a Party, any corporation or other business entity that 
directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with such Party. 

"Control" means direct or indirect ownership of, or other beneficial interest in, fifty per 
cent (50%) or more of the voting stock, other voting interest or income of a corporation or other 
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business entity or the ability to otherwise direct or control the management of a corporation or 
other business entity. 

"Antivipmyn" means an antivenom pharmaceutical composition for the treatment of 
snake envenomations by non-indigenous snakes which cannot be effectively treated by CroFab 
and only so far as Antivipmyn has been imported into the United States as an unapproved 
experimental drug in a manner meeting the applicable regulatory and other requirements for the 
supply of a limited emergency-use medicine pursuant to the existing exemption as set forth by 
the Food and Drug Administration, and pursuant to any Investigational New Drug (BB-IND) 
Number. 

"Antivipmyn TRI" means an antivenom pharmaceutical composition for the treatment of 
snake envenomations by non-indigenous snakes (including the treatment of Lachesis 
("Bushmaster")) which cannot be effectively treated by CroFab and only so far as Antivipmyn 
TRI has been imported into the United States as an unapproved experimental drug in a manner 
meeting the applicable regulatory and other requirements for the supply of a limited emergency-
use medicine pursuant to the existing exemption as set forth by the Food and Drug 
Administration, and pursuant to any Investigational New Drug (BB-IND) Number. 

"BTG" shall mean, as noted above, BTG International Inc., and wil l include its Affdiates, 
as defined. Should any one of BTG or its Affiliates cause a material breach of this Agreement, 
the Silanes Parties and RDT retain rights of recourse as to any one entity individually or 
collectively. 

"Commercial Sales Entry Date" means October 1, 2018. 

"Customer" shall mean a Third Party to whom an Excluded Product is sold. 

"Excluded Produces)" means Anavip and other FCab'^based snake antivenom products 

Antivipmyn TRI as those terms are defined above and subject to those limitations. 

"FDA-Mandated Importation" means importation of Excluded Product into the United 
States solely in the necessary volumes and solely for the following reasons: (i) FDA-mandated 
pre-approval investigational studies (including lot release testing) subject to the conditions of a 
valid, applicable IND; and/or (ii) FDA-mandated post approval commitments (including lot 
release testing), in each case provided that Excluded Products are supplied by the relevant 
Silanes Party, RDT, or any intermediary, and brought in at cost and not for profit to a Third Party 
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recipient and not sold, disposed of or otherwise transferred for value (including any cash or non
cash consideration). 

"Future Patents" shall include all continuations, continuations-in-part, divisionals, 
reexaminations, inter-partes review, extensions, reissue applications, and reissues, related to the 
Licensed Patent, and any other U.S. patents owned by, exclusively licensed to (with the right to 
sub-license), or subject to a right of enforcement by BTG or any of its Affiliates, now or at any 
time during the duration of this Agreement, that cover or claim the manufacture, use, sale, offer 
for sale, importation or distribution of the Excluded Products in or for the United States. Future 
Patents further include all other patents and patent applications claiming a right of priority 
therefrom or sharing a claim of priority therewith, directly or indirectly, irrespective of when 
filed or granted. BTG confirms that beyond the Licensed Patent, as of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, there are no Future Patents, and i f any Future Patents are filed by BTG during the 
duration of this Agreement, BTG will promptly inform the Silanes Parties and RDT, and provide 
each with a copy thereof. 

"Gross Sales" means the US$ amount billed or invoiced by any Silanes Party and/or RDT 
and/or other distributor of Excluded Products or their respective Affiliates to Customers in 
respect of the sale, use or other disposal of Excluded Products (in final form packed for ultimate 
consumer use) provided that where an Excluded Product is sold, used or otherwise disposed of in 
the Territory: (i) other than in an arm's-length sale at the open market price; or (ii) for 
consideration which includes any non-cash element; then the Gross Sales applicable to such 
transaction shall be deemed to be the open market price for the relevant Excluded Product (in 
final form packed for ultimate consumer use). 

"Licensed Patent" means U.S. Patent No. 8,048,414 ("the '414 patent"). 

"Net Sales" shall mean, the United States dollar amount determined by deducting the 
following items from the Gross Sales billed for the Excluded Products sold by a Seller (see 
below) and their respective Affiliates to unaffiliated Third Parties in the Territory in arm's-length 
transactions: (i) trade, quantity or cash discounts, service allowances (including, without 
limitation, wholesaler's fee for services and redistribution fee), taken, allowed, accrued or paid; 
(ii) credits or allowances for the product, i f any, given or accrued on account of price and shelf 
adjustments, returns, rebates, chargebacks, any and all federal, state or local government rebates 
(including Medicaid rebates) or discounts now in existence, volume reimbursements, and the 
gross amount billed for rejected product or product recalled; and (iii) any surcharge, levy, tax or 
assessment mandated by any federal, state or local government or administrative agency to fund 
a compensation program or reserve for persons injured by the Excluded Products. The Net Sales 
in each case shall be determined in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States. 

Page 4 of20 



"Person" shall mean any natural person, corporation, unincorporated organization, 
partnership, association, joint stock company, joint venture, limited liability company, trust or 
government, or any agency or political subdivision of any government, or any other entity. 

"RDT" shall mean, as noted above, Rare Disease Therapeutics, Inc., and wil l include its 
Affiliates, as defined. Should any one of these entities cause a material breach of this 
Agreement, BTG retains rights of recourse as to any one entity individually or collectively. 

"Shortage" means a situation where providers of CroFab in the United States (e.g., 
hospitals) are not in possession of CroFab - and are unable by any means to acquire any amount 
of CroFab - to treat Cro/o/w^-envenomated patients in need of Crotalus antivenom. 

"Silanes Parties" shall mean, as noted above, Laboratorios Silanes and Bioclon, and will 
include its Affiliates, as defined. To the extent that the Silanes Group (or, "Grupo Silanes") is a 
legal entity, this Agreement shall be read to bind that entity as well. Should any one of these 
entities cause a material breach of this Agreement, BTG retains rights of recourse as to any one 
entity individually or collectively. 

"Territory" shall mean the United States ("U.S."), including its territories and 
possessions. 

"Third Party" shall mean any Person other than BTG, Laboratorios Silanes, Bioclon, 
RDT, or an Affiliate of any of them. 

PROVISIONS 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and 
conditions herein set forth, the receipt and sufficiency of which consideration is hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
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1. Notice to the Chief Administrative Law Judge. The Parties agree that thev will 
notify the Chief Administrative Law Judge of the settlement of the Investigation within twenty-
four (24) hours of the Effective Date of this Agreement. ( I f the Effective Date is a Friday, the 
notification will be made on the following Monday.) 

2. Dismissal of Investigation. The Parties shall cooperate in obtaining formal 
termination of the Investigation without costs as follows: 

a) Within two (2) business days of the Effective Date of this Agreement, the 
Parties shall cooperate in executing and filing a Motion under Commission 
Rule 210.15 and Ground Rule 7, or in such other form as the Parties may 
agree, to terminate the investigation on the basis of the Agreement; and 

b) The form of the Motion shall be as set forth in Exhibit A hereto. 

3. Termination of Inter Paries Review Proceeding. Within two (2) business days of 
the termination of the Investigation by the Commission, the Silanes Parties and RDT shall 
initiate steps to effect termination of their Petition for Inter Partes Review of U.S. Patent No. 
8,048,414 under 35 U.S.C. §§ 311-319 and 37 C.F.R. §§ 42.1-.80, 42.100-. 123 (Case IPR2014-
01269, filed August 11, 2014) ("Inter Partes Review"), which steps shall include: together with 
BTG, requesting a conference call with the Patent Trial and Appeal Board; jointly seeking leave 
to file a motion to terminate the Inter Partes Review which wil l include a confidential copy of 
this Agreement; and, i f leave is granted, filing such motions in addition to whatever other actions 
are necessary to effectuate such termination. The form of the Motion shall be as set forth in 
Exhibit B hereto. The Silanes Parties and RDT shall not provide support or guidance to any 
Third Party in preparing or filing any subsequent Petition for Inter Partes Review of the '414 
patent. 

4. BTG Release of Silanes Parties and RDT. Subject to and conditional upon the 
Silanes Parties' and RDT's compliance with the terms set forth in this Agreement, BTG and its 
respective officers, directors, employees and agents, and their assigns and their respective 
officers, directors, employees and agents, for themselves and their successors and assigns, hereby 
release, acquit and forever discharge the Silanes Parties and RDT and their Affiliates, owners, 
stockholders, agents, directors, officers, employees, representatives, attorneys, partners, parent 
companies, divisions, predecessors, successors, assigns, subsidiaries (and the respective agents, 
directors, officers, employees, representatives and attorneys of such Affiliates, partners, parent 
companies, divisions, predecessors, successors, assigns, and subsidiaries) from all claims, 
counterclaims, liabilities, demands, obligations, promises, acts, contracts, costs, expenses, 
attorneys' fees , damages, actions, and causes of action of every nature, character, and 
description, whether known or unknown, asserted or un-asserted, fixed or contingent, that were 
raised or could have been raised in or in connection with, or arose out of, the Investigation. For a 
breach of this Agreement, BTG's recourse wil l be to seek a remedy as described in Section 31 
below. 

5. Silanes Parties and RDT Release of BTG. Subject to and conditional upon BTG's 
compliance with the terms set forth in this Agreement, the Silanes Parties and RDT, and their 
respective officers, directors, employees and agents, and their assigns and their respective 
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officers, directors, employees and agents, for themselves and their successors and assigns, hereby 
release, acquit and forever discharge BTG and their Affiliates, owners, stockholders, agents, 
directors, officers, employees, representatives, attorneys, partners, parent companies, divisions, 
predecessors, successors, assigns, subsidiaries (and the respective agents, directors, officers, 
employees, representatives and attorneys of such Affiliates, partners, parent companies, 
divisions, predecessors, successors, assigns and subsidiaries) from all claims, counterclaims, 
liabilities, demands, obligations, promises, acts, contracts, costs, expenses, attorneys' fees 
(excepting those specifically addressed in Section 11 this Agreement), damages, actions, and 
causes of action of every nature, character, and description, whether known or unknown, asserted 
or un-asserted, fixed or contingent, that were raised or could have been raised in or in connection 
with, or arose out of, the Investigation. For a breach of this Agreement, the Silanes Parties' and 
RDT's recourse will be to seek a remedy as described in Section 31 below. 

6. Exclusion and Term. 

a) As of the Effective Date of this Agreement, and subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement (such as the remaining provisions of this Section 6), the Silanes 
Parties and RDT (and all Affiliates and successors (including any successor or licensee to the 
BLA or any successor to RDT as distributor for the Excluded Products, and any other Sellers)) 

The Parties agree that this exclusion will apply until the earlier of: 

(i) the Commercial Sales Entry Date; or 

(ii) the date on which the Licensed Patent has been held to be 
invalid or unenforceable by a court or administrative agency from which 
no further appeal can be taken as a result of an action brought by a Third 
Party ("Exclusion Term"). 
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20. Notices to Parties. Any notice, report, payment or statement required or permitted 
under this Agreement shall be sufficient i f sent by first class mail or the equivalent for 
international delivery, postage prepaid, or overnight carrier, postage prepaid: 

i f to BTG, to: Name: Gabriel Holdsman 
Title: General Counsel US, Senior Vice President Legal 
Operations 
BTG International Inc. 
Five Tower Bridge, Suite 800 
300 Barr Harbor Drive 
West Conshohocken, PA 19428 
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i f to the Silanes Parties, to: Name: Alfonso Robina 
Title: General Counsel 
Instituto Bioclon S.A. de C V . 
Calzada de Tlalpan No. 4687 
Col. Toriello Guerra 
Tlalpan, Ciudad De Mexico, D.F. 14050 

Name: Guillermo Funes 
Title: Chief Operating Officer 
Laboratorios Silanes SA de CV 
Amores 1304 
Col. Del. Valle, Mexico D.F., CP. 03100 

i f to RDT, to: Name: Milton Ellis 
Title: President 
Rare Disease Therapeutics, Inc. 
Suite ISO 
2550 Meridian Boulevard 
Franklin, TN 37067 

or to such other address as a Party may specify by notice hereunder, or means of communication 
agreed upon by the Parties in advance of such notice. 

21. Confidentiality. The terms and conditions of this Agreement are and shall remain 
confidential for the duration of this Agreement. No Party shall disclose the terms or conditions 
of this Agreement except: 

• 

• 
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Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties may, however, disclose the following 
information about this Agreement without authorization from another Party; 

a) the fact that a Party denies any liability whatsoever to another Party; 

b) the fact that the Investigation has been settled to the Parties' mutual 
satisfaction; 

c) the fact that the IPR has been terminated; 

d) the fact that the Settlement contemplates an exclusion period until October 
1, 2018, followed by a license; and 

e) the fact that other terms of the settlement are confidential. 

It shall not be a violation of this Section 21 should information protected hereunder 
become public other than as a result of a deliberate act of a Party hereto or its Affiliates or their 
respective agents, employees or officers. 

The fact that the Silanes Parties and RDT have been granted the License provided for in 

22. Denial of Liability. The Parties agree and acknowledge that this Agreement is 
entered into for the sole purpose of resolving and compromising disputed claims. It is expressly 
agreed and acknowledged that neither the execution nor performance of any of the terms of this 
Agreement shall constitute or be construed as an admission by any Party of any liability for any 
claims or any indication that any of the claims or charges made by another party have any merit, 
or that the Licensed Patent is not valid, enforceable, and/or infringed by any of the Silanes 
Parties' and RDT's products. 
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30, Complete Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the complete agreement 
between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior 
understandings, negotiations, representations, and agreements between them, whether oral or 
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written, on the subject matter thereof. Any modification or amendment of this Agreement must 
be made in writing and executed by the Party to be charged with obligations arising from such 
modification or amendment, and must refer specifically to this Agreement. 

31. Governing Law and Arbitration. This Agreement shall be interpreted in 
accordance with, and the rights of the Parties governed by Delaware law, without regard to its 
choice of law principles or conflicts of law, as follows: 

a) Any and all controversies, claims or disputes arising out of or relating to Section 6 
this Agreement, ("Exclusion and Term") (including any controversy arising out o f any 
importation occurring prior to the Commercial Sales Entry Date), except Section 6(e)(i) ("Pre 
Marketing Activities"), shall be settled and determined exclusively by final and binding 
determination by the United States District Court for the District of Delaware unless subject-
matter jurisdiction is lacking, in which instance the controversy, claim or dispute in question 
would be settled and determined exclusively by Delaware state courts. For the avoidance of 
doubt, the Parties believe that the United States District Court for the District of Delaware would 
have jurisdiction under 35 U.S.C. § 1332 given that any controversies, claims or disputes arising 
out of or relating to this Agreement would likely involve matters in controversy exceeding the 
sum or value of $75,000; and 

b) Any and all other controversies, claims or disputes arising out of the remaining 
clauses of this Agreement, including Section 6(e)(i) ("Pre Marketing Activities"), and including 
the subject matter, enforceability or breach thereof, shall be resolved by arbitration by a single 
arbitrator administered by JAMS or the American Arbitration Association. The United States 
District Court for the District of Delaware shall have concurrent jurisdiction for the sole purpose 
of issuing preliminary injunctive relief or other equitable relief in order to enforce the terms of 
this Agreement. Judgment on the award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered in any 
court having jurisdiction over the parties. 

32. Multiple Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed on facsimile, scanned 
or PDF copies and in multiple counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original, but all of 
which together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. 

33. Construction. The Parties agree and acknowledge that this Agreement is the 
product of all Parties and shall not be construed against any Party. 

34. Severability. Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibited or unenforceable 
in any jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or 
unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions hereof or affecting the validity or 
enforceability of such provision in any other jurisdiction; wherever possible, each provision of 
this Agreement shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable 
law. 

Page 19 of 20 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by 
their duly authorized representatives as of the date of the last signature below: 

BTG INTERNATIONAL INC. THE SILANES PARTES 

ForBTGbimtMtii^itlnc. 
Name: Mal low J" 
Titie: iderv f 
Date: &&f, %Zo>^ 

Name: 
Title: 
Date: 

For Laboratorios Silanes SA.de CV. 

For Instituto Bioclon SA. de CV: 

RARE DISEASE THERAPEUTICS, 
INC. 

For Rare Disease Therapeutics, Inc. 
Name: 
Title: 
Date: 

Name: 
Title: 
Date: 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties havs caused thia Agreement to be executed by 
their duly authorized representatives as of the date of the last signature below; 

For BTG International Inc. 

BTG INTERNATIONAL INC. 

Title: £XQ .0. 
Name: 
Title: 
Date: 

For Instituto Bioclon S.A. fife CV.: 
Name: /b&sxs <S£ 
Title: Zyt/r/wo/ £c?e*yc~. 

RARE DISEASE THERAPEUTICS, 
INC. 

For Rare Disease Therapeutics, Inc, 
Name: 
Title: 
Date: 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by 
their duly authorized representatives as of the date of the last signature below: 

BTG INTERNATIONAL INC. THE SILANES PARTIES 

For BTG International Inc. For Laboratorios Silanes SA.de C. V. 
Name: 
Title: 
Date: 

Name: 
Title: 
Date: 

For Instituto Bioclon S.A. de C, V.: 
Name: 
Title: 
Date: 

RARE DISEASE THERAPEUTICS, 
INC. 

For Rare Disease Therapeutics, Inc. 
Name: Milton E l l i s 

Title: President 

Date: October 9, 2014 


